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Allen Theweny 
direct: (619) 961-4813 

atheweny@hbblaw.com 

Haight Brown & Bonesteel LLP 
402 West Broadway 
Suite 1850 

San Diego, California 92101 
619.595.5583 
619.595.7873 fax 

www.hbblaw.com 

 

April 4, 2024 

Re: Litigation Disclosure: In Re HPC Gaslamp City Square LLC v. Gaslamp City 

Square Property Owners’ Association, Status of Litigation 

Insured:  Gaslamp City Square Property Owners’ Association 
  

 

To Whom It May Concern: 

Please allow this to serve as a disclosure regarding the certain pending litigation entitled 

HPC Gaslamp City Square LLC v. Gaslamp City Square Property Owners’ Association currently 

pending in San Diego Superior Court, Case No. 37-2022-00015248-CU-BC-CTL. A single 

commercial owner filed litigation regarding the commercial assessment allocation. This litigation 

has been pending since April 2022. Gaslamp City Square Property Owners’ Association (“POA”) 

tendered this claim to the POA’s insurance carrier and the association is being defended pursuant 

to the terms of insurance.  The Association is being defended by corporate counsel Michael C. 

Parme and Allen Theweny of Haight Brown & Bonesteel, LLP.  The amount demanded by 

Plaintiff is less than the applicable limits of insurance.  Further information is available through 

the Court’s publicly available register of actions. 

 Very truly yours, 

Allen Theweny 

Haight Brown & Bonesteel LLP 

 



  

 

 

Michael C. Parme 
direct: (619) 961-4809 
mparme@hbblaw.com 

Haight Brown & Bonesteel LLP 
402 West Broadway 
Suite 1850 
San Diego, California 92101 
619.595.5583 
619.595.7873 fax 

www.hbblaw.com 

 
May 31, 2024 

 
To:  Owners of Units at Gaslamp City Square   

 

Re: Litigation with HPC Gaslamp Square LLC 
HPC Gaslamp Square LLC v. Gaslamp City Square Property Owners’ 
Association, San Diego Superior Court Case No. 37-2022-00015248 

  

 
To Whom It May Concern: 

On May 30, 2024, HPC Gaslamp Square LLC (HPC) – the commercial owner of retail 
and restaurant units on the ground floor and parking garage – circulated correspondence that 
contains statements that are misleading, devoid of context, and untruthful with the objective of 
advancing its own financial interests. 

The allegations levied against Gaslamp City Square Property Owners’ Association (POA) 
are made without evidence or context to a community that has witnessed first-hand as HPC has 
allowed its unoccupied commercial spaces to fall into disrepair, taken the extreme measure of 
refusing to pay any assessments since December 2023 to the detriment of the community, and all 
while neglecting issues of importance to the community such as health and safety in the parking 
garage.   

It is notable that HPC’s letter is silent as to the current POA Board’s record of fiscal 
responsibility, preventative maintenance, and project implementation, in particular, restoring 
functionality to critical building systems. 

HPC filed the above referenced lawsuit in 2022 because it disagreed with the commercial 
assessment allocations that are established in the Covenants, Conditions, & Restrictions 
(CC&Rs).  Between 2013-2021, HPC was the beneficiary of assessment reductions enacted 
pursuant to an alleged agreement signed in 2012.  These assessment reductions, undisclosed to 
residential membership, contributed to pushing the POA to the brink of insolvency.  Since 2021, 
the POA has relied on advice of counsel as to how commercial assessment allocations are to be 
calculated.  The POA maintains the alleged agreement was unlawful and void for myriad 
reasons, among them, the lack of required vote by membership and lack of any record of a 
vote on the alleged agreement in any meeting minutes.   

The POA’s legal counsel has opined the Court’s April 26, 2024 ruling is contrary to 
California law.  In advance of the Court’s ruling, the POA successfully advocated for its insurer 
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to retain an appellate specialist.  The POA’s Petition for Writ of Mandate will be filed in the 
coming days, which asks the Court of Appeal to intervene and reverse the lower court’s decision.  
As forecasted in the POA’s May 25, 2024 posted notice and May 28, 2024 electronic notice, the 
Board will schedule a litigation Town Hall once the appeal is filed and provided to the POA.  
Legal counsel will be present to address questions and concerns from members. 

The POA maintains insurance for handling the claims at issue, and the above lawsuit was 
appropriately and promptly tendered to the POA’s insurer for handling.  This litigation will not 
conclude until all appellate remedies have been exhausted.  Any statements regarding the 
outcome or impact of the litigation as it relates to insurance or costs are not factual, but rather 
pure supposition based on speculation by HPC or its counsel. 

Moreover, it is notable the POA’s Board has been vigilant in taking additional actions to 
protect the interests of the community.  It has retained insurance coverage counsel to advise and, 
based upon evidence obtained through the litigation process, is presently exploring all avenues 
for legal recourse beyond the aforementioned lawsuit based on the considerable evidence of 
unlawful conduct undertaken by third parties that may have caused or contributed to 
damage to the POA.  

While our office (as well as two other law firms involved in the defense) disagrees with 
the Court’s recent ruling, it is reasonable to conclude HPC’s letter is intended to intimidate 
owners and cast negative aspersions on the POA’s decision-making.  Rather than speculate about 
motivations regarding the timing of HPC’s disinformation campaign, such as the fact HPC just 
recently listed its commercial holdings for sale and is weary of an appellate court independently 
reviewing the lower court judge’s decision, it will suffice to say the POA’s Board has worked 
diligently, promptly, and cooperatively with its insurers, attorneys, and vendors concerning all 
matters related to HPC.  Any suggestion to the contrary by HPC is unfounded and should be 
treated with skepticism. 

In the coming weeks, additional information will be made available to members through 
the POA Board.  Rest assured, with full cooperation and engagement from the POA Board, our 
office is exhausting every means available to obtain a just result as it relates to the 
aforementioned lawsuit and unrelated disputes concerning HPC. 

 

 Very truly yours, 
 
 

 
Michael C. Parme 
Haight Brown & Bonesteel LLP 


